

# EP2200 NetAgent Network Card

# **COMMUNICATIONS GUIDE**



# Table of Contents

Mulfilink Inc. 580 Ternes Ln. | Elyria,OH 44035 | 440.366.6966 | www.gomultilink.com Copvriaht © 2020 • Specifications subject to chanae without notice • Rev. July 22<sup>nd,</sup> 2020



EP2200 Network Card Introduction:	3
Installation:	3
Powering the Network Card:	4
Accessing the Network Card:	4
Webpage Navigation:	6
Information - System and Network Status:	6
Basic Information:	9
Current Status:	10
Remote Control:	16
Configuration – UPS Configuration:	
Configuration – Network Settings:	22
Configuration – SNMP	25
Configuration – Email	28
Configuration – Web/Telnet Account Information	32
Configuration – Time Settings	35
Network Card and UPS Event Logs:	36
Help – Save and Upload Configuration:	
Help – More Information:	40
Additional Resources:	41
Login Troubleshooting:	41



#### **EP2200 Network Card Introduction:**

The NetAgent network card has been designed to work with multiple types of power supply systems. Its robust interface and industrial grade hardware allow it to work with Multilink's EP2200 uninterruptible power supply to provide Ethernet connectivity. Each NetAgent network card contains an embedded webpage that allows users to configure the network card and monitor and control each EP2200 remotely. This in-depth guide will describe communication protocols, webpages, and features of the NetAgent network card that are most commonly used to communicate with and control the EP2200.

#### Installation:

Each EP2200 has a slot to add the EP2200 NetAgent network card. If ordered with the UPS at time of manufacturing, the network card will be installed at the factory. However, if a network card is to be added to an EP2200, follow the steps below.

- 1. Locate the network card slot above the fan. A blank, metal plate should be covering this slot.
- 2. Using a #2 Phillips screwdriver, remove and retain the two screws. Discard the metal plate.
- 3. Remove the NetAgent network card from its packaging. Be sure to follow all ESD rules when handing this device.
- 4. Insert the device into the PCB guides and insert the network card into the slot.
- 5. Replace the two screws.
- 6. Attach a straight-through Ethernet cable to the Ethernet port on the network card.
- 7. Installation is now complete.





# Powering the Network Card:

The Network card is powered by the EP2200 from an internal power source. When AC or DC power is applied to the EP2200, the network card will start, and indicator LEDs will illuminate, displaying that power is active and the network card is initializing. After a brief period, the network card may be accessed, either locally or remotely.

#### Accessing the Network Card:

Accessing the network card can be done locally, with a computer connected directly to the Ethernet port or remotely through the user's network. Local connections allow for the device to be configured prior to deployment, with remote access providing operating conditions of the EP2200. Each network card comes with a default, static IP address for configuration purposes. To connect to the network card locally or remotely, follow the instructions below. The following instructions utilize Windows 7/10 operating systems and use the factory default values for these instructions.

#### **Local Connection:**

- 1. With power applied to the UPS, connect a straight-through Ethernet cable to the "Ethernet" port on the front panel of the UPS.
- 2. Connect the opposing end of the Ethernet cable to the Ethernet port of a computer.
- 3. Verify the current IP Address of the UPS by scrolling through the Status menu on the LCD. **The factory IP Address** of the network card is 192.168.1.51.
- 4. The desktop or computer's network interface card must be configured to the same IP range as the NetAgent network card.
- 5. Navigate to the network and ethernet connections control panel and select "Change adapter settings" on the local ethernet connection that is in use.
- 6. Right click on the "Local Area Connection" and select "Properties". Click to highlight "Internet Protocol Version 4 (TCP/IP) and click the "Properties" button below.
- 7. Highlight the "Use the following IP Address" radio button and enter an IP Address in the range of 192.168.1.1-254. For example: 192.168.1.10. Be sure not to enter the network card's IP Address in this textbox. If another IP Address has already been assigned to the network card, enter an IP Address in the same range of the network card's IP Address in the textbox.
- 8. Enter the appropriate subnet mask into the "Subnet mask" text box if it has not already been auto filled. For example: if 192.168.1.10 is the IP Address, the Subnet mask would be 255.255.255.0.
- 9. Select the "OK" button and then select "Close" on the Properties window. The computer's network interface card may now begin communication with the network card.
- 10. Open a preferred web browser and enter the IP address. The user will be prompted with a login page. **The default username and password are**:

#### Username: admin Password: user

11. The user may now access and modify the webpages of the network card.



#### **Remote Connection:**

- 1. If DHCP is enabled, connect the Ethernet cable to the network switch or router and allow the network card to be assigned an IP address.
- 2. If a Static IP address has been assigned, whether the factor default or a pre-configured IP address, verify the IP address of the network card through the LCD and record this address.
- 3. Connect the Ethernet cable to the network switch or router.
- 4. Open a preferred web browser and enter the IP address. The user will be prompted with a login page. The default username and password are:

#### Username: admin Password: user

- 5. If the username and password have been modified, enter the modified credentials.
- 6. The user may now access and modify the webpages of the network card.



#### Webpage Navigation:

Below is a description of all pertinent webpages contained in the NetAgent network card. Each page will be discussed, with information regarding specific parameters or configurable items being addressed. If configuration of items such as email, SNMP, or IP addressing is necessary, please contact the network administrator to provide the necessary credentials or address information before proceeding.

#### **Information - System and Network Status:**

When first logging into the NetAgent network card, the user is presented with the System Status webpage. This page provides two tabs of information that describe parameters essential to the network card. The page contains several additional webpages in the left column as well as a message system in the upper right corner of the window, which displays the last three events that have occurred.





# System Information:

On the System Information tab, these parameters include hardware and firmware versions, serial number of the network card, name, location, and system time.

UPS Agent(My Office)	+	- 🗆 X
$\leftrightarrow$ $\rightarrow$ C (1) Not secure   1	0.20.0.205	∽ ☆ 😬 :
Net	Agent IX Latest Events [08:54:21] Service Started [08:54:09] IPC Self Test [08:54:07] No temp. probe	
Information	Information > System Status	
System Status 🖨	System Information Network Status	
Basic Information		
Current Status	Hardware Version HCY504	
	Firmware Version 3.7.CY504PB.2	
	Serial Number 3927276857	
Log Information	System Name UPS Agent	
🕕 Help	System Contact Administrator	
	Location My Office	
	System Time 2020/07/20 09:19:53	
	Send Email for Daily Report (No)	
		Help



#### **Network Status:**

The Network Status tab provides a summary of all network parameters currently configured for the network card. These parameters include the MAC address, connection type, IP address, Subnet Mask, Gateway Address, Email and Time servers, and additional information.

UPS Agent(My Office)	+			- 🗆	×
$\leftrightarrow$ $\rightarrow$ C $\odot$ Not secure   1	0.20.0.205			• 🛧 😝	:
Net	Agent I	Latest           [08:54:2]           [08:54:2]           [08:54:2]	Events 21] Service Started 09] IPC Self Test 07] No temp. probe		
	System Information	Network Statu	s		<b>^</b>
System Status 📮	Ethernet		General		
Basic Information	MAC Address 00:0	3:EA:15:7D:39	Email Server	10.20.0.207	
Current Status	Connection Type 100	Mbps Full-Duplex	Time Server	time.windows.com	
Remote Control			PPPoE IP		
			PPPoE IPv6		
Log Information					.
	IPv4		IPv6		
	IP Address 10.2	0.0.205	IP Address		
•	Subnet Mask 255.	.255.0.0	LinkLocal	fe80::203:eaff:fe15:7d39/6	4
	Gateway 10.2	20.1.244	Address		
	Primary DNS 10.2	0.0.156	6to4 Address		
	Server		Gateway		
	Secondary DNS		Primary DNS		
	Server		Server		
			Secondary DNS		
			Server		
					-



# **Basic Information:**

The Basic Information tab provides a summary of the EP2200 identification and configuration information. Manufacturer, model number, firmware version, identifying name (if assigned), are displayed on this page. Additionally, a summary of the operating specifications and currently assigned transfer points are listed.

	UPS Agent(My Office)	× +		_			×
~	$\rightarrow$ C ( Not secure	10.20.0.205		07	☆	0	:
	Ne <sup>-</sup>	tAgent IX	Latest Events [08:54:21] Service Started [08:54:09] IPC Self Test [08:54:07] No temp. probe				
	Information	Information > Basic Informat	ion				
Sy	stem Status	Identification Information					
Ba		Manufacturer	Multilink,Inc.				
	mete Control	Model	EP2200				
Re		EEPROM Version	MuP2KV1.8				
$\mathbf{x}$	Configuration	ID Name					
Ń	Log Information	Attached					
$\widehat{1}$	Help	Configuration Information					
		Input Voltage	120.0 V				
		Input Frequency	60.0 Hz				
		Output Voltage	120.0 V				
		Output Frequency	60.0 Hz				
		Battery Voltage	48.0 V				
		Max Charger Current	10.0 A				
		Low Voltage Transfer	90 V				
		High Voltage Transfer	150 V				
							-



# **Current Status:**

The Current Status tab provides measured operating parameters for each EP2200's Input, Output, Battery System, Events/Timer, Summary, and Relay Contact Status. Values displayed on each page are measured and reported by the EP2200 to the network card. The user may scroll over each of the status tabs shown. The user may also select a different refresh rate for which values will automatically be displayed. Scrolling over each tab will automatically display its respective contents.

#### **Input Status:**

UPS Agent(My Office)	+			- 🗆	×
← → C ③ Not secure   1	0.20.0.205			• 🕁 \varTheta	:
Net	Agent IX		Latest Events [08:54:21] Service Started [08:54:09] IPC Self Test [08:54:07] No temp. probe		
Information	Information > Current Status				
System Status	Input Status Output Status	Battery Status	Event / Timer Summary	Contact Status	
Basic Information Current Status Remote Control Configuration	Input Voltage Input Frequency	112 V 60.0 Hz			
Log Information Help		UPS Status Refresh status ev	UPS Normal	Help	

Input status displayed the currently measured Input voltage and frequency.



#### **Output Status:**

Output status displays the currently measured Output voltage, frequency, and output power consumption in watts.





#### **Battery Status:**

Battery status displays the currently measured Battery voltage and temperature.





#### **Event/Timer Status:**

The Event/Timer status page shows the total number of inverter events, Buck events, Boost events, and their respective timers. Each event timer is used to record the time each event is active.

UPS Agent(My Office)	+					-		×
$\leftrightarrow$ $\rightarrow$ C (i) Not secure   1	0.20.0.205					<b>o</b> ਨੂੰ	Θ	:
Net	Agen	t IX		Latest Events [08:54:21] Serv [08:54:09] IPC S [08:54:07] No te	ice Started Self Test mp. probe			
	Information > (	Current Status						
System Status	Input Status	Output Status	Battery Status	Event / Timer	Summary	Contact Stat	us	
Basic Information								
Current Status	Inverter Event		2					
	Inverter Timer		0 Hours 0	) Minutes				
	Buck Event		0					
Log Information	Buck Timer		0 Hours 0	) Minutes				
🚹 Help	Boost Event		0					
	Boost Timer		0 Hours 0	) Minutes				
			UPS Status Refresh status e	UPS Normal very 10 seconds	Y		Help	



#### **Summary Status:**

The Summary status tab reports the current selected configuration and/or operating state for the UPS. Sense type is used measure total harmonic distortion of the Input voltage for each EP2200 and determines if it is a usable voltage. "Normal Mode" is selected by default. "Generator Mode" may be selected to expand the boundaries for which the EP2200 may operate from a more distorted Input voltage, commonly referred to as "dirty power". Additionally, the status of the line Input, Output, power to an external fan, any faults or any alarms that may currently be active.

UPS Agent(My Office)	× +					— (		C
$\leftarrow$ $\rightarrow$ C $\odot$ Not secure	10.20.0.205					ণ 🕁	Θ :	
Net	tAgen	t IX		Latest Events [08:54:21] Serv [08:54:09] IPC S [08:54:07] No te	ice Started self Test mp. probe			
	Information >	Current Status						
System Status	Input Status	Output Status	Battery Status	Event / Timer	Summary	Contact Statu	s	
Basic Information								٦
Current Status	Sense Type		NormalMo	ode				
	Line Status		Normal					
	Output Status		LineMode	9				
Log Information	External Fan St	atus	NotActiva	ted				
() Help	Faults		NONE					
	Alarms		[No temp.	probe]				
			UPS Status Refresh status er	UPS Normal	~	He	łp	



#### **Contact Status:**

Each EP2200 contains six programmable dry contact relays that close when the programmed alarm threshold or condition is met. Each contact lists the condition for which it opens (not active) or closes (active) and lists the state of the respective relay. There is also a programmable Input contact that may be programmed to perform a self-test or indicate that a door has opened, or an external alarm condition exists.

UPS Agent(My Office)	< +					-		$\times$
← → C ③ Not secure   1	0.20.0.205					<b>07</b> 2	r 0	:
Net	Agen	nt IX		Latest Events [08:54:21] Serv [08:54:09] IPC S [08:54:07] No te	ice Started Self Test mp. probe			
Information	Information >	Current Status						
System Status	Input Status	Output Status	Battery Status	Event / Timer	Summary	Contact St	atus	
Basic Information         Current Status         Remote Control         Configuration         Image: Configuration         Im	Contact C1 Contact C2 Contact C3 Contact C4 Contact C5 Contact C6 Program I/P Co	ontact	[On Batt] [On Batt] [Lo Batt:4 [Timer:2.1 [Timer:2.1 [Self_test	/[NotActivated] /[NotActivated] 47.5Volts]/[NotActiv 47.5Volts]/[NotActiv 00Hours]/[NotActiva 00Hours]/[NotActivated]	ated] ated] ated] ated]			
			UPS Status Refresh status e	UPS Normal	<b>v</b>	(	Help	



# **Remote Control:**

Remote control of battery tests and configuration of the dry contact relays is accomplished on this page. Users may initiate a self-test to determine if the batteries for the EP2200 can support the output load during a loss of input voltage. The users may also edit the function of each of the six relays, as well as the programmable input contact.

UPS A	Agent(My Office)	×	+			_			×
$\leftarrow \   \rightarrow$	C O Not secure	10.2	0.0.205			07	☆	θ	:
	Net	t/	Agent IX		Latest Events           [08:54:21] Service Started           [08:54:09] IPC Self Test           [08:54:07] No temp. probe				
📃 Info	ormation		Information > Remote Control						
System Basic In Current Remote	Status formation Status Control  Infiguration Information P		UPS Testing Initial Self Test Testing Result: No Test Contact Status Contact C1 Contact C2 Contact C3 Contact C4 Contact C5 Contact C6 Program I/P Contact	[On Batt] [On Batt] [Lo Batt: [Lo Batt: [Timer:2. [Timer:2. [Self_tes	] Edit ] Edit 47.5Volts] Edit 47.5Volts] Edit .00Hours] Edit .00Hours] Edit t] Edit	eset	Не	elp	



The user should click "Edit" next to the relay and a new window will be presented, allowing the user to select which function the relay contacts will play, as well as settings for when the relay will become active. Users may select from On Battery, Low Battery, Timer, Alarm, Fault, or whether to Disable the relay from activating. Be sure to configure the settings for each option and then click "Apply" to save settings. These values will display on the Remote Control tab as well as on the Current Status tab. Clicking the "Reset" button will restore the relay values to the factory defaults.

10.20.0.205/contact1_6.htm - Google C	Chrome		_		$\times$	
O Not secure   10.20.0.205/conta	ct1_6.htm					
Contact Control						•
Function	On Battery V On Battery Low Battery Timer Alarm Fault Disable	Apply	Rese	t		•
4					•	

🔰 10.20.0.205/contact1_6.htm - Google Chrome — 🗌 😒								
A Not secure   10.20.0.205/contact1_6.htm								
Contact Control						-		
Function Parameter (42.0V-55.0V)	Low Battery V 48.0	V Apply	Rese	et 🕽				
4					•			



#### **Configuration – UPS Configuration:**

This webpage lists all programmable operating parameters of the EP2200, over multiple tabs. Each tab allows the user to select an option for each parameter, if required.

#### **UPS Properties:**

**NOTE**: the UPS Communication Type is selectable, but the user should not adjust this option. If issues with UPS communication arise, ensure this parameter is set to "**PB2000**". On the UPS Properties tab, the user may set the date for which the batteries where last replaced, modify the identification name of the unit, and explain if a user input device is attached to the EP2200. Input and Output factory configured values are displayed as well. Be sure to click "Apply" to save any changes.





# Test Log:

Allows the users to select the time interval for which items will be stored in the UPS Data log. Enter a time in minutes (1-minute default is selected) and click "Apply" to save.

UPS Agent(My Office)	× +			- 🗆 X
$\leftarrow \rightarrow C$ A Not secure	10.20.0.205			☆ 😬 :
Ne <sup>-</sup>	tAgent	: IX	Latest Events [08:54:21] Service Started [08:54:09] IPC Self Test [08:54:07] No temp. probe	
Information	Configuration > l	JPS Configuration		
	UPS Properties	Test Log Maintenance	Transfer Point	
UPS Configuration 🗳	UPS Recorder			
Network	UPS Data Log	1	Minute(s) (0	= Stop Recording)
SNMP Email				
SMS			_	
Web/Telnet/FTP			Арр	ly Reset Help
System Time	•			



#### Maintenance:

This tab allows users to select and modify several operating conditions such as Line Qualification Time, Battery Charging Temperature Compensation values, Battery Voltage Low Warning value, External Fan power by Temperature, Battery Test Options, Manually Force the Inverter On or Off, Reset Event/Timer Counters, and change the maintenance menu password. This password only applies to the LCD menu option. Its default value is "1111". Click "Apply" to save values or click "Reset" to restore default values, which are shown below.

UPS Agent(My Office)	+		-		×
← → C ▲ Not secure   10	0.20.0.205			☆ 8	:
Net	Agent IX	Latest Events [08:54:21] Service [08:54:09] IPC Self [08:54:07] No temp	Started Test probe		
Information	UPS Properties Test Log Maintena	Ince Transfer Point			<b>^</b>
	Line Qualify Options				
UPS Configuration	Line Quality	30 ✓ seconds			
Network	Battery Charging Temperature Compe	isation			
SNMP	Compensation value	-3.0 V mV/°C/Cell			
SMS	Battery Voltage Low Warning				
Web/Telnet/FTP	Enter new value	47.5 <b>∨</b> V			
System Time	External On/Off By Temperature				
Language	Temperature set to (20-55)	25°C			
C Log Information	Battery Test Options				
Help	Test period time (1-255)	1 Mi	nute(s)		
	Test Switch to	○ On ○ Off			
	Inverter On/Off				
	Inverter switch to	○ On ○ Off			
	Reset The Event/Timer Counters				
	Reset The Counters	Reset			
	Change Password				
	Current Password				
	New Password				
					-
			Apply Reset	Help	-



#### **Transfer Point:**

The EP2200 has default values for which line voltage is measured and if it is found to be outside of the boundaries, the unit will enter a different mode of operation. This tab allows the user to select specific values for which each EP2200 would enter a different mode. If the AVR feature is enabled, Buck and Boost modes are made available and the user may select the points as which the unit enters those modes. The user may also define the upper and lower transfer points and the hysteresis value, the amount of change in the measured value required for the mode to return to a previous mode. Be sure to click "Apply" to save settings. Click "Reset" to restore the default values for each option, which are shown below.

UPS Agent(My Office)	× +		- 🗆 ×
← → C ▲ Not secure	10.20.0.205		☆ 🛛 :
Ne	tAgent IX	Latest Events [08:54:21] Service Started [08:54:09] IPC Self Test [08:54:07] No temp. probe	
Information	Configuration > UPS Configurat	lion	^
	UPS Properties   Test Log   M	Aaintenance Transfer Point	
UPS Configuration	High Transfer Point Setting		
Network	High Limit Point (120-150V)	150 V	
SNMP	High Hyst Point	145 V	
Email	High Gap (3-7V)	5 V	
SMS	Buck Transfer Point Setting		
Web/Telnet/FTP	Buck High Point (120-144V)	130 V	
System Time	Buck Low Point	125 V	
Language	Boost Transfer Point Setting		
Log Information	Boost High Point	107 V	
1 Help	Boost Low Point (96-120V)	102 V	
	Low Transfor Point Sotting		
	Low Transfer Point Setting		
	Low Hyst Point	95 V	
	Low Gap (3-7V)	5 V	
	AVR Feature Setting		
	Buck Feature		
	Boost Feature	● On ○ Off	
		Apply	Reset



# **Configuration – Network Settings:**

Several network parameter tabs are available for the user to configure settings. IP settings for both IPv4 and IPv6, Ethernet card settings, Dynamic DNS settings, and PPPoE settings are available for the user. The tabs for IPv4 and Ethernet are widely used in the application of the EP2200. Other option listed are available for use but are largely outside of the scope of use for the EP2200 and will not be presented in depth.

UPS Agent(My Office)	+	- 🗆 X
← → C ▲ Not secure   10	0.20.0.205	☆ 🖰 :
Net	Agent IX	Latest Events [08:54:21] Service Started [08:54:09] IPC Self Test [08:54:07] No temp. probe
	Configuration > Network	
	IPv4 IPv6 Ethernet Dynamic D	
UPS Configuration	IP Address	
Network	IP Address	10.20.0.205
SNMP	Subnet Mask	255.255.0.0
Email	Gateway	10.20.1.244
SMS	Obtain an IP address	Manually V
Web/Telnet/FTP	DNS Server IP	
System lime	Primary DNS Server IP	10.20.0.156
	Secondary DNS Server IP	
Log Information	Obtain DNS Server IP	Manually V
() Help		
		Apply Reset Help



#### **IPv4 Settings:**

This is the primary network settings tab for each NetAgent network card. The user may modify the network parameters required to establish communication with each network card. IP address, subnet mask, gateway, DNS addresses, as well as selecting to manually enter a static IP address or enable DHCP, are available on this tab. Be sure to click "Apply" to save settings. Click "Reset" to restore the default values for each option, which are shown below. Note that the network card will restart if these values are modified. **NOTE**: IF these settings are modified remotely, loss of network communication may occur if entered incorrectly.

UPS Agent(My Office)	+	- 🗆 X
← → C ▲ Not secure   1	0.20.0.205	☆ 🖰 :
Net	Agent IX	Latest Events [08:54:21] Service Started [08:54:09] IPC Self Test [08:54:07] No temp. probe
Information	Configuration > Network	
	IPv4 IPv6 Ethernet Dynamic DN	IS PPPoE
UPS Configuration	IP Address	
Network	IP Address 1	0.20.0.205
SNMP	Subnet Mask	255.255.0.0
Email	Gateway	0.20.1.244
SMS	Obtain an IP address	Manually V
Web/Telnet/FTP	DNS Server IP	
System Time	Primary DNS Server IP	0.20.0.156
Language	Secondary DNS Server IP	
Log Information	Obtain DNS Server IP	Manually V
() Help		
		Apply Reset Help



# Ethernet Tab:

By default, the Ethernet port is setup for auto-sense detection of the network connection type. However, the user may select a specific connection type from the list provided, such as 10Mbps or 100Mbps, half or full duplex.

UPS Agent(My Office) ×	+		-		×
$\leftrightarrow$ $\rightarrow$ C (1) Not secure   10	20.0.205		☆	θ	:
Net	Agent IX	ents Service Started IPC Self Test No temp. probe			
Information	Configuration > Network				
	IPv4 IPv6 Ethernet Dynamic DNS PPPoE				
UPS Configuration Network  SNMP Email SMS Web/Telnet/FTP System Time Language Log Information Help	Connection Type *       Auto Sense         Stop UPS communcation when Ethernet       No ✓         disconnected       No ✓         Modbus on TCP Device ID       1         *: System will reboot when these ite	•ms have been Applied.	t H	elp	



#### **Configuration – SNMP**

Simple Network Management Protocol (SNMP) is a useful tool for remotely monitoring each EP2200. It can automate the notification of events, known as Traps, that occur for each EP2200, such as loss of input power. This page allows the user to configure the necessary client (agent) and server (manager) addresses, ports, as well as security settings to establish an SNMP connection for all three SNMP versions. The General Tab allows the user to modify the name, contact, and location of the EP2200, as well as establish the ports for both the agent and manager for which traps will be forwarded. Additionally, the user may select the SNMPv3 Engine ID Format Type and Text for unique entity identification purposes. Be sure to click "Apply" to save settings. Note that the system will reboot after these settings are modified.





#### **Access Control:**

Access control is used to define the SNMP server (manager) IP address from which one or more managers may initiate SNMP communication. Users may modify the IP address, SNMP version, community string, permission, and description of the connection for up to 10 managers. The user would enter the specific IP address of the machine (note that entering \*.\*.\* allows any machine on the network communicate with this SNMP agent), modify the Community string, if required. This string is required to match for both the agent and the manager for communication to be allowed. Users may select permission types such as Read, Read/Write, or prevent access all together.

UPS Agent(My Office) ×	+					- 🗆 ×
← → C ▲ Not secure   10.2	20.0.205					☆ 😬 :
Net/	Agent	IX			Latest Events [08:54:21] Service Started [08:54:09] IPC Self Test [08:54:07] No temp_ probe	
Information						
	General Acces	s Control	Trap Not	tification Device Connected		
UPS Configuration						
Network	Manager IP Addr	ess Ver	sion	Commu	unity Permission	Description
SNMP	10.20.4.76	All	<u>~</u> >>	public	Read/Write	
Email	****	All	× >>	public	No Access	·
SMS	****	All	~ >>	public	No Access	·
Web/Telnet/FTP	****		<u> </u>	public	No Access	
System Time	****		>	public	No Access	
Language	****		>	public	No Access	
Log Information	***	All	× >>	public	No Access	
Help						
					Apply	Reset Help



#### **Trap Notification:**

A feature of SNMP, Trap notifications can provide automated notification of events that occur with each EP2200 or NetAgent network card. If Trap notifications are required, the user will modify the information on this page. The destination IP is the address for which trap will be sent and received. This IP address may coincide with Manager IP address in the previous section or may be modified for up to ten destinations. The user may change the accept type to fit the SNMP protocol version and type required for the network. Additionally, the user may modify the community string, trap type, issue a severity level, describe the destination, or select and test the connection to ensure trap delivery. SNMP inform requests may also be issued, with the number of retries and timeout selectable. Be sure to click "Apply" to save changes.

UPS Agent(My Office)	SNMP_NetAge	ent Help >	<   +					- 0	. ×
← → C ③ Not secure   1	0.20.0.205							\$	<b>e</b> :
Net	Agent	t IX				Latest Events [05:18:43] Servic [05:18:30] IPC Sel [05:18:28] No tem	e Started If Test p. probe		
Information									
	General Acce	ss Control Trap	Notification	Device Connected					
UPS Configuration	Trap Notification								
Network	Destination IP	Accept		Community	Trap	Type Severity	Description	Event	s
	10.20.4.179	No 🗸	public		PPC	✓ Information ✓		Select	Test
Email		No 🗸	public		PPC	✓ Information ✓		Select	Test
2.002		No ¥	public		PPC	✓ Information ✓		Select	Test
		No Y	public		PPC	✓ Information ✓		Select	Test
Web/ leinet/F IP		No Y	public		PPC	✓ Information ✓		Select	Test
System Time			public		PPC	✓ Information ✓		Select	Test
Language <		No ¥	public		PPC	♥ Information ♥		Select	Tost
Log Information	Send Power Restor	e and Adapter Resto	ore Traps for 0	time(s) in 0	second(s) in	terval.			lest
	SNMP Inform Req	uest							
	Number of Retries			3					
	Timeout (sec)			5					
						(	Apply Reset	Help	

#### **SNMP MIB File:**

The management information base (MIB) is an important text file that is used by an network management solution (NMS) tool, such as a MIB browser or NMS suite. This file contains the object identifier (OID) for each item that may be read or written to. These objects are the EP2200 operating parameters. The standard **UPS-MIB** (RFC 1628) is used to receive SNMP objects for the EP2200. This file may be downloaded from <u>www.ietf.com</u> and used with an NMS tool to perform SNMP communication with the EP2200.



#### **Configuration – Email**

The NetAgent can automatically forward emails to a list of recipients when the EP2200 experiences an event. These events are displayed and described for each EP2200, with pertinent information about the event, the time and location of the event, etc. The user may assign the SMTP network parameters to each network card, as well as add a list of recipients. The user may need to consult with the network administrator to acquire the necessary information shown below to establish an email connection. This will require the user know the network's SMTP or email server IP address, port for email forwarding, authentication credentials, if required, and a useful sender's email address to apply to each network card. After applying the settings, the user may send a test email to verify the connection.

	UPS Agent(My Office)	×	+	- 🗆 X
÷	→ C ③ Not secure	10.2	20.0.205	☆ 😝 :
	Ne	t/	Agent IX	Latest Events [05:18:43] Service Started [05:18:30] IPC Self Test [05:18:28] No temp. probe
	Information		Configuration > Email	
*	Configuration		Email Setting Email for Event Log	Email for Daily Report
UP	S Configuration			
Net	work		Email Server	10.20.0.207
SNI	MP		Email Port	25
Em	ail 📮		Enable SSL on Email Transmission	NONE V
SM	S b/Talpat/ETD		Sender's Email Address	testnetcard@ep2200.com
Svs	tem Time		Email Server Requires Authentication	
Lan	iguage	•	Account Name	
-7	Log Information		Password	
			Send Test Mail To	lest Mail
	пер			
				Apply Reset Help



#### **Email for Event Log:**

This page allows the user to enable automated email notification as well as enter multiple recipients of the emails. Users should enter the email address of the user that is to receive the email next to each account. Be sure to click "Apply" to save settings.

UPS Agent(My Office) ×	+			- 🗆	)	×
← → C ▲ Not secure   10.20	0.0.205			☆	9	:
NetA	Agent IX	Latest Event [05:18:43] So [05:18:30] IP [05:18:28] No	ts ervice Started C Self Test b temp. probe			]
Information C	Configuration > Email					
	Email Setting Email for Event Log	Email for Daily Report				
UPS Configuration Network SNMP Email = SMS Web/Telnet/FTP System Time Language C Log Information Help	Send Email When Event Occurs YES ~ Account1 Account2 Account3 Account5 Account6 Account7 Account8	engsupport@gomultilink.com	Select Select Select Select Select Select Select	Reset Help	)	



The user may select any number of events to receive an email notification. Click the "Select" button next to each account and a window will display, allowing the user to select or deselect specific events. Click "Apply" to save selections.

10.20.0.205/select_event.htm - Google Chrome	_		$\times$	
Not secure   10.20.0.205/select_event.htm	m			
Select Event UPS Events				Î
	YES	NO		
Power failure	۲	$\bigcirc$		
Power restore	۲	$\bigcirc$		
Battery low	۲	$\bigcirc$		
Communication lost	۲	$\bigcirc$		
Communication established	۲	$\bigcirc$		
Output overload	۲	$\bigcirc$		
Output overload solved	۲	$\bigcirc$		
Programmable Input Contact Activated	۲	$\bigcirc$		
Any Alarm	۲	$\bigcirc$		
Any Fault	۲	$\bigcirc$		
Timer Value	۲	$\bigcirc$		
On Battery	۲	0		
	Select All Cl	ear All Ap	bly	



# **Email for Daily Report:**

If the user would like to receive a daily report for the respected EP2200, enter the email address of the recipients, enable automatic email reporting, and set the time of day for the report email to take place.

UPS Agent(My Office)	+	- 🗆 X
← → C ▲ Not secure   10	0.20.0.205	☆ 😝 :
Net	Agent IX	Latest Events [05:18:43] Service Started [05:18:30] IPC Self Test [05:18:28] No temp. probe
Information	Configuration > Email	l
	Email Setting Email for Event Log	Email for Daily Report
UPS Configuration Network SNMP Email SMS Web/TeInet/FTP System Time Language Log Information Help	Account1 Account2 Account3 Account4 Send Email for Daily Report (hh:mm)	Image: Image



#### **Configuration – Web/Telnet Account Information**

The NetAgent network card can utilize Telnet to provide the user with another method for communicating and configuring each EP2200. Additionally, this webpage is used to modify the credentials for username and passwords. To use Telnet, a default user account is setup from the factory and the user may enter the default credentials in order to view the menu system. The default credentials are:

#### Username: admin Password: user

The user may view this webpage and choose to add additional users, modify the default account, and enable or disable access for each user. IP filtering may also be used to restrict access to the device, or left as "\*.\*.\*" to allow any computer to access the network card.

UPS Agent(My Office) ×	+			- 🗆 X			
$\leftrightarrow$ $\rightarrow$ C $\blacktriangle$ Not secure   10	0.20.0.205			☆ 🖰 :			
Latest Events           Image: NetAgent IX           Image: Distance of the state of t							
Information	Configuration > Web/Te						
	User Account FTP Se	erver SSL Information	RADIUS Serv	er Settings			
UPS Configuration							
Network	User Name	Password	Permission	IP Filter			
SNMP	admin	*****	Read/Write 🗸	****			
Email			No Access 🗸	****			
SMS			No Access V	****			
Web/Telnet/FTP			No Access V	****			
System Time			No Access V	***			
Language			No Access 🗸	* * * *			
C Log Information			No Access 🗸	* * * *			
Help	Auto LogOff after idl	e for 0 minute(s) (0:	: Disable)	Apply Reset Help			



To view the menu via Telnet, a Telnet client program, such as PuTTy, is required for communication. Enter the IP address of the network card and open the session.

🕵 PuTTY Configuration		? ×							
Category:									
Session	Basic options for your PuTTY session								
	Specify the destination you want to connect to								
Keyboard	Host <u>N</u> ame (or IP address)	<u>P</u> ort							
Bell	10.20.0.205	23							
	Connection type: ○Ra <u>w</u> ● <u>I</u> elnet ○Rlog <u>i</u> n ○ <u>S</u> SH	⊖ Se <u>r</u> ial							
Appearance Behaviour Translation Colours Connection Data Proxy Telnet Rlogin SSH Serial	Load, save or delete a stored session Sav <u>e</u> d Sessions	Load Sa <u>v</u> e Delete							
	Close window on e <u>x</u> it Always Never Only on cle	an exit							
<u>A</u> bout <u>H</u> elp	<u>O</u> pen	<u>C</u> ancel							



Press any button. The user will be prompted to enter the username and password and once verified, will be presented with the menu system. The user may then select a number and enter that number in the terminal to access any of the menus and modify the respective options shown. Each menu contains helpful instructions for each step to ensure accuracy of entering information and omitted from this guide for brevity.

🗗 10.20.0.205 - PuTT	γ		—	×
				^
<<<<	Main Menu	>>>>>		
<<<<<		>>>>>		
1. Set IP Addr	ess.			
2. Set SNMP MI	B System.			
3. Set SNMP Ac	cess Control.			
4. Set SNMP Tr	ap Notification.			
5. Set UPS Pro	perties.			
6. Set UPS Dev	ices Connected.			
7. Set System	Time & Time Server.			
8. Set Web and	Telnet User Account			
9. Set E-mail.				
a. Reset Confi	guration to Default	& Reboot		
c. Save & Rebo	ot.			
0. Exit Withou	t Saving.			
0-1+ · ·				
Select =>				$\sim$



# **Configuration – Time Settings**

To modify the date and time of the NetAgent network card, the user may view this tab and manually adjust the date and time, configure the NTP time server address, Time Zone, and whether to enable or disable Daylight Savings Time. The user may also wish to set an automatic update time or to restart the network card if the time cannot automatically be updated. Each network card contains a real time clock to maintain the date and time when powered off.

UPS Agent(My Office)	< +	- 🗆 X
← → C ▲ Not secure   1	0.20.0.205	☆ \varTheta :
Net	Agent IX	
Information	Configuration > System Time	
Configuration UPS Configuration Network SNMP Email SMS Web/Telnet/FTP System Time = Language Log Information Help	System Time         System Time (yyyy/mm/dd hh:mm:ss)       2020/07/21 09:43:29         Time Between Automatic Updates       1 Hour ▼         Time Server       time.windows.com ▼ Edit         Time Zone (Relative to GMT)       GMT-5:00 ▼         Using Daylight Saving Time       YES ▼         Restart         Auto Restart System for Every (0: Disable)         0       Minute(s) ▼         Manual Restart System After 30 Seconds	Apply Reset Apply Reset Apply Help



#### **Network Card and UPS Event Logs:**

Event logs for the network card, EP2200, and data collection are maintained for each EP2200 deployed. These event logs provide timestamped information that may be used for troubleshooting. Three event logs are available for viewing and may be downloaded for record keeping. Users may select the date range to review information and may also clear each event log independently.

#### **Event Log:**

This event log maintains a list of events that pertain to the network card and the EP2200. When service has started, if communication is lost, server address resolution errors, etc. are examples of events that may be stored in this log.





## Data Log:

The information stored in this log coincides with the UPS Test log configuration time. By default, information such as input voltage, output voltage, power, battery voltage, and temperatures are recorded every minute. This information may be reviewed for troubleshooting specific issues regarding any of these data points.

UPS Agent(My Office)	+						- 🗆	$\times$
← → C ▲ Not secure   1	0.20.0.205						☆ 8	:
Latest Events         105:18:43] Service Started         105:18:28] No temp. probe								
	Log Information > D							Î
	Data Log							
Log Information			1234	5 6 Next				
Event Log	Date/Time	Input Volt.(V)	Output Volt.(V)	Freq. (Hz)	Load(%)	Battery Volt.(V)	Temp.	. 1
Data Log 📮	2020/07/20 14:32:10	113.0	114.0	60.0	39	53.30	0.0°C 32.0°F	
UPS Event Log	2020/07/20 14:30:54	112.0	114.0	60.0	38	53.30	0.0°C 32.0°F	
Help	2020/07/20 14:29:38	112.0	114.0	60.0	38	53.30	0.0°C 32.0°F	- 1
	2020/07/20 14:28:21	112.0	114.0	59.0	38	53.30	0.0°C 32.0°F	
	2020/07/20 14:27:04	112.0	114.0	60.0	38	53.30	0.0°C 32.0°F	
	2020/07/20 14:25:48	113.0	114.0	60.0	39	53.30	0.0°C 32.0°F	
	2020/07/20 14:24:32	112.0	114.0	60.0	38	53.30	0.0°C 32.0°F	
	2020/07/20 14:23:15	112.0	113.0	60.0	38	53.30	0.0°C 32.0°F	
	2020/07/20 14:21:59	112.0	113.0	60.0	38	53.30	0.0°C 32.0°F	
	2020/07/20 14:20:43	112.0	114.0	60.0	39	53.30	0.0°C 32.0°F	
	2020/07/20 14:19:27	112.0	114.0	60.0	38	53.30	0.0°C 32.0°F	
	2020/07/20 14:18:10	112.0	113.0	60.0	38	53.30	0.0°C 32.0°F	
	2020/07/20 14:16:54	112.0	114.0	60.0	39	53.30	0.0°C 32.0°F	
	Date Date Date Date Date Date Date Date	e of Datalog 20	20/07/20 🗸		Save D	ata Log Clear	. Help	-



#### **UPS Event Log:**

The EP2200 records several pieces of information in regard to each event that occurs. For example, if the EP2200 experiences a power outage, a sample of the operating parameters is taken at the time of the outage and stored for review. This information may be used for troubleshooting specific events. Users may click the "Update" button in order to refresh the log. Several hundred events may be stored, so the user may want to update several times. Users may view this items 100 events at a time.

	UPS Agent(My Office)	×	+										- 🗆 X
←	→ C ▲ Not secure	e   10.2	20.0.205										☆ 🔒 :
	NetAgent IX         Latest Events           IO5:18:30] IPC Self Test         IO5:18:28] No temp. probe												
	Information		Log Info	ormation :	> UPS	Even	Log						
Śź	Configuration		UPS E	vent Log									
-	Log Information										1 2 Ne	xt	
			Date	Time	Vin V	out Fi	n Pout	Vbat	Tbat	Ths	Vds1	Vds2	AVR Status
Da	ita Log		05/19/20	01:58:26	000 1	22 00	0 0000	51.1	+20	+21	010	010	[Black_Out] [ON_BATT]
UF	PS Event Log 📮		07/14/20	07:21:52	114 0	00 06	0 0000	32.2	+00	+21	000	000	[Tem_Probe_Disconnect] [Batt_Not_Connect]
$\bigcirc$	Help		07/14/20	10:17:07	113 1	14 06	0 0000	49.4	+00	+28	003	002	[Tem_Probe_Disconnect]
			07/14/20	12:18:38	116 1	18 06	0 0000	52.5	+00	+30	011	009	[ON_BATT] [Tem_Probe_Disconnect]
			07/14/20	12:20:10	116 1	17 06	0 0000	52.2	+00	+27	000	000	[Tem_Probe_Disconnect]
			07/15/20	04:05:44	115 0	00 05	9 0000	51.1	+00	+20	000	000	[Tem_Probe_Disconnect]
			07/15/20	09:23:04	114 0	00 06	0 0000	51.7	+00	+24	000	000	[Tem_Probe_Disconnect]
			07/17/20	04:34:35	120 0	00 06	0 0000	34.1	+00	+34	000	000	[Tem_Probe_Disconnect] [Batt_Not_Connect]
			07/17/20	04:34:46	120 0	00 06	0 0000	35.5	+00	+34	000	000	[Tem_Probe_Disconnect]
			07/20/20	06:56:23	114 0	00 05	9 0000	32.2	+00	+20	000	000	[Tem_Probe_Disconnect] [Batt_Not_Connect]
			#	001-#100	Instru	ctions	t00		Vie	ew	1 2 Ne	ext	Update



#### Help – Save and Upload Configuration:

The NetAgent has a useful feature that allows users to configure one device, download and store the configuration of that device, and upload it to several devices. This allows several network cards to be programmed with the same settings file quickly and efficiently, minimizing time to deployment. In the Help Tab, select the About tab to save the current configuration. Users should save and rename this file to upload to new network cards, or to restore a network card to a previous configuration. To save the current configuration, click "Save" and a file with the file extension of ".cfg" will download. To upload the file to configure a new network card or restore a previous configuration, click "Choose File" and select the appropriate config file. Click "Restore" to apply the settings. Users may also "Reset" the device back to its original settings as well.





# Help – More Information:

For information that is not explicitly listed in this guide, select "Help" from the Help tab, and a new window will open, providing the user with a useful guide, further explaining items on each page.

About_NetAgent Help ×	+	-		×
$\leftrightarrow$ $\rightarrow$ C $\odot$ Not secure   m	negatec.com.tw/netagent9/std/en_help/helpAbout.htm	$\overset{1}{\diamond}$	0	:
Net/	Agent IX Help			
Information	Save/Restore Settings			
	Click "Save" to save the configuration to your PC. The text file will have a default format of			
Log Information	YYYY_MMDD_#####.ctg. Administrator permission required. Use this function to restore a *.ctg configu has been saved earlier. Click "Browse" to the location of the file and click "Restore".	iration th	nat	
() Help	Reset to factory default			
Search NetAgent	This function will reset all settings to its default value.			
Serial Port Debug				
About =	Update Firmware			
Download Firmware	This function will help you link to Megatec's Web server, in order to download the latest firmware.			
	User may check Netagent's instruction, version of software/hardware, manufactureetc f	rom he	re.	



#### **Additional Resources:**

With each NetAgent network card, a CD containing user manuals, useful software tools, and files that may be used to further expand the capabilities of the network card are included with the network card packaging. The user may elect to download the Netility Tool to assist with configuration of network cards. This tool is used to modify username and passwords, restore factory settings, and configure network settings. It is not required to utilize Netility or any software contained on the CD to communicate with the network card or EP2200. Additional resources may also be found at www.gomultilink.com or by emailing engsupport@gomultilink.com.

#### Login Troubleshooting:

In the event that the username and/or password are lost for the NetAgent network card, the user may enter a special webpage to access this information. Access to this webpage requires knowledge of a unique hardware ID that is physically printed on each network card. The user would access this information by entering the username "admin" and the hardware ID at the following web address to retrieve credentials.

X.X.X.X/password.cgi where "X.X.X.X" is the currently assigned IP address.

10.20.0.205/password.cgi	× +	- 🗆 X
← → C ▲ Not secure	10.20.0.205/password.cgi	• 🛧 😝 :
Enter the ID and PWD info (sho password.	own on the back label) to retrieve e	either the Web or Utility
ID	admin	
PWD	•••••	
		Continue

For additional troubleshooting assistance, please contact <u>engsupport@gomultilink.com</u> or call 440-366-6966.





Scan QR for website. Multilink, Inc 580 Ternes Ln Elyria, OH 44035 Tel: (440) 366-6966 Fax: (440) 366-6802







twitter.com/GoMultilink



youtube.com/GoMultilink

	North America	Europe, Middle East & Africa	Latin & South America
Contact Us	Tel: +1 440 366 6966	Tel: +1 440 366 6966	Tel: +1 440 366 6966
•	Fax: +1 440 366 6802	Fax: +1 440 366 6802	Mobile: +1 440 366 6802
	Email: engsupport@gomultilink.com	Email: engsupport@gomultilink.com	Email: <a href="mailto:lasupport@gomultilink.com">lasupport@gomultilink.com</a>

Copyriaht © 2020• Specifications subject to chanae without notice • Rev. July 22nd, 2020